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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of Vizag General Cargo Berth Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Vizag General Cargo Berth Private Limited (“the Company”) which
comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial Statements
give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025,
its loss including its other comprehensive loss, and its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAT’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional Jjudgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the
audit. We also -

1) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

ii) Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.
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iif) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the management.

iv)  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

v)  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section
(11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A", a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said
Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b)  In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books;

¢) The Company does not have any branch office consequently reporting under Section 143(3)(c) is not applicable;

d) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, and the Cash
Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with in this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

e) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the
Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

807, 8th Floor, Jain Sadguru Images Capital Park, Image Garden Road, Madhapur, Hyderabad, Telangana - 500081
Mobile : +91 99664 01975, Email : hyd@aptllp.com, Website : www.aptllp.com
-~ Delhi | Hyderabad | Mumbai | Bengaluru | Ahmedabad | Noida | Gurugram | Ranchi
Jammu | Chandigarh | Bahadurgarh | Vijayawada | Indore | Patna
INDI A Dubai | Abu Dhabi | Canada | Italy




Member Firm of

APTand Co LLP

Chartered Accountants
LLPIN : AAL - 8025

f)  No financial transactions or matters which have adverse effect on functioning of the company were observed;

g) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025, taken on record by the Board
of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act;

h) No qualification or adverse remark is given in relation to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith;

i) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in the "Annexure B" to this report;

J) Inour opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2025 has been paid / provided by the Company to
its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

k)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us:

a. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements -
Refer Note 25 to the financial statements;

b.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material
foreseeable losses;

¢. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the
Company;

i. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to
or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

ii. The management has represented, that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by the
Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and
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iii. Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause
(i) and (ii) contain any material mis-statement.

¢. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

f.  The Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording
audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software except that audit trail feature was enabled in the SAP application for direct changes to data in certain
database tables for part of the year as described in note 33 to the financial statements. Further no instance of audit trail
feature being tampered with was noted in respect of the software. Additionally, the Company has preserved audit trail
in full compliance with the requirements of section 128(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of the financial
year ended March 31, 2024 to the extent it was enabled and recorded during the year ended March 31, 2024.

For APT AND CO LLP

Chartered Accountants
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UTTAM PATEL

Designated Partner
Date: April 23, 2025 Membership No. 079947
Place: Hyderabad UDIN: 25079947BMJHQX5179
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Annexure 'A' referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements" of our report of even date

Re: Vizag General Cargo Berth Private Limited ("the Company")

L. In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

a.
1. The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

ii.  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

b.  All Property, Plant and Equipment were physically verified by the management in the previous year in accordance
with a planned programme of verifying them once in three years which is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets.

¢. The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease
agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) are held in the name of the Company.

d.  The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use assets) or intangible assets
during the year ended March 31, 2025.

e.  There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the
Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

il. In respect of Inventory and working capital:

a.  The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the year. In our
opinion the coverage and the procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate. Discrepancies of 10%
or more in aggregate for each class of inventory were not noticed in respect of such of physical verification.

b.  The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks or
financial institutions during any point of time of the year on the basis of security of current assets. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

iii. In respect of investments, any guarantee or security or advances or loans given:

a.  During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood guarantee or provided
security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b.  During the year the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees, provided security and granted loans and
advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly,

the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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¢.  The Company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

d. The Company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(d) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

e. There were no loans or advances in the nature of loan granted to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or
any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

f. The Company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans, cither payable on demand or without
specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

iv. In respect of loan to directors:

There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

v. In respect of deposits accepted:

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are deemed to be deposits
within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

vi. In respect of maintenance of cost records:

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made by the Central
Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, related to the port
services, and are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts and records have been made and maintained. We
have not, however, made a detailed examination of the same.

vii. In respect of statutory dues:
a. Undisputed Statutory Dues:

The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including goods and
services tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of
excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it. According to the information and explanations
given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these
statutory duss wors vutstanding, at the ycar ond, (Ur a period Of mMOre man SiX months from the date they became

payable.
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b.  Disputed Statutory Dues:

Member Firm of

Q

The dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax,
duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and other statutory dues have not been deposited on account of

any dispute, are as follows:

Naine of He Seaks Nataieatthe dics Amount (In Rs.)* | Period to which Forum Wher? dispute is
the amount relates pending
Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax 29,30,463 2012and 2013-14 |oStems, Bxoise and Servios
Tax Appellate Tribunal
. " 2011-12 and Customs, Excise and Service
Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax 4,70,74,941 2014-15 Tax Appelate Tribunal
APVAT Act, 2005 VAT/WCT 40,38,499 ;8}1}? e Commercial Tax Department
CGST Act, 2017 Input Credit 17,02,634 2017-18 Commercial Tax Department
CGST Act, 2017 Input Credit 9,43,337 2017-18 Commercial Tax Department
2013-14,
2014-15
) ’ The High Court for Th
CGST Act, 2017 TRAN-1 Credit 7.81.78,621  |2015-16, SHigle Coutior T
State of Andhra Pradesh
2016-17 and
2017-18

*excluding interest and penalty
viii. In respect of unrecorded income:

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of account, in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly the requirement to report on clause
3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

ix. In respect of default in repayment of borrowings:

a.  The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any
lender.

b.  The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any
vovernment authority or any other lander.
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¢.  Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

d.  Onan overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on short-term basis have been
used for long-term purposes by the Company.

e.  The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

f. The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

X. In respect of funds raised and utilisation:

a.  The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer/ further public offer (including
debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b.  The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or partially or optionally
convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

xi. In respect of fraud and whistle-blower complaints:

a.  No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

b.  No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed
under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and up to
the date of this report.

c. As represented to us by the management, no whistle blower complaints were received by the Company during the
year.

xii. In respect of compliance of a Nidhi Company:

a.  The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the requirement
to report on clause 3(xii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b.  The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the requirement
to report on clause 3(xii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

¢.  The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the requirement
to report on clause 3(xii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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xiil. In respect of compliance on transactions with related parties:

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the
details have been disclosed in the note 28 to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

The provisions of section 177 are not applicable to the Company and accordingly the requirements to report under clause
3(xiii) of the Order in so far as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

xiv. In respect of Internal Audit Systems:
a.  The Company have an internal audit system as to commensurate with the size and the nature of its business.

b.  We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company during the year and till
date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

xv. In respect of non-cash dealings with directors:

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and
hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvi. In respect of registration under section 45-IA of RBI Act, 1934:

a.  The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b.  The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

¢.  The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank of India.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

d.  There are no other Companies part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

xvii. In respect of cash losses:

The Company has incurred cash losses amounting to Rs. 2.08 Crore in the current year and amounting to Rs. 2.42 Crore in
the immediately preceding financial year respectively.

xviii, In respect of resignation of Statutory Auditors:

According to the information and explanations given to us, the previous statutory auditors of the Company have resigned
during the year. As informed to us, there were no issues, objections or concerns raised by the outeoing auditors.
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xix. In respect of material uncertainty on meeting liabilities:

Based on the financial ratios disclosed in note 34 to the financial statements, the ageing and expected realization of financial
assets and payment schedules of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, we note that the Company’s current liabilities exceed its current assets by Rs. 411.47 Crore, the Company has
obtained the letter of financial support from the holding company. nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to
believe that Company is not capable of meeting liabilities, existing as at the balance sheet date.

We further state that our reporting under this clause is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. Our
evaluation is based on the facts and assumptions made up to the date of the audit report, and we do not provide any
guarantee or assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date will be
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xX. In respect of transfer to fund specified under schedule VII of Companies Act, 2013:

a.  The provisions of Section 135 to the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to Corporate Social Responsibility is not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

b.  The provisions of Section 135 to the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to Corporate Social Responsibility is not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

For APT AND CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No: 014621C/N500088
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Annexure 'B' referred to in paragraph 2(f) under the heading "Report on Other legal and Regulatory Requirements" of
our Report of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (""the
Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Vizag General Cargo Berth Private

Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Committee of Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway Commission (2013 Framework) ("COSO 2013 Criteria"). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditer's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting ("the Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAIL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls with
reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Company's internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of
the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in COSO 2013 criteria.

For AP T AND CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No: 01462 1C/N500088
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VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2025

Asat

- As at
Particulars
e Neates March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(INR Crores) (INR Crores)
ASSETS
1 Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment an, 1.1 1.07
(b} Capital Work in progress 4 6.94 6.94
{<) Intangible assets 4B 399.90 423.90
{d) Financial assets
(i) Trade Receivables 5 - -
(it) Others finandal assets 6 3.20 3.20
(e) Deferred tax assets (net) 30 47.49 50.08
[{i] Other non current assets 11 0.00 0.10
(g) Income tax assets (net of provisions) 2.52 2,67
Total non current assets 461,27 487.96
2 Current assets
(a) Inventaries 7 4.35 3.54
(b) Financial asscts
(i) Investments 8 2.88 (0.00)
(i} Trade receivables 9 1%.23 17.41
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 10 5.45 6.67
(iv) Bank balance other than (iil) above
(iv) Qther Bank Balances 1.06 0.52
(v) Other financial assets & 0.48 1.11
(c) Other current assets 11 2.72 4.76
{d) Income tax assets (net of provisions) 0.01 0.01
Total current assets 36.18 34.02
Total assets 497.45 521.98
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 EQUITY
{a) Fquity share capital 12 47.11 47.11
(b} Other equity (87.23) (57.58)
Total equity (40.12) (10.47)
2 LYABILITIES
Nen-current Liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13 68.50 68.50
(1) Lease liabilities 0.82
(iii} Others financial liabilites 16 -
(b} Deferred tax labilities (Net) 3e
(c) Other non-current liabilities 14 20.23 21.63
(e Rrovisinns 17 0.43 021
Total nan current liabilities 89.98 90.44
abilities
ancial llabilities
IA 295.27 '3 97
case liabilities 0.32
(i) Trade payables
(a) T(.:\Lal Outstanding dues of Micro Enterpriscs 15 0.93 121
and Small Enterprises
{b) Total Qutstanding dues of Creditors other 7
than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 2034 338
(iv) Other financial habilities 16 66.31 3h,76
{b) Other current liabilities 14 3.6a B./4
(<) Provisions 17 0.18 0.18
Total current liabilities 447.59 442,02
Total liabilities 537.57 532.45
Total equity and liabilities 521.98

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For APTANDCO LLP

Chartered Accountants

1CAI Firm Registration No. 01462 1C/N500088

(i P

UTTAM PATEL
Partner
Membership No.: 0994/

N500088

Place: Hyderabad
Date : April 23, 2025

Hyvderabad
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

(Sali, oo

Chikkala Sateesh Kumar
Whole-time Director & CEQ
DIN : 08879426
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Gopal Mandelia
Chilef Financial Officer

Saif Ali Khan
Company Secretary
ICSI Membership No: ACS74667

Place: Visakhapatnam
Date . April 23, 202

Anup Agarwal
Non-Executive Director
DIN : 08551388

9 Place: Delhi

Date : April 23, 2025




VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

As at As at
Particulars Notes March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(INR Crores) (INR Crores)
I Income
(a) Revenue from operations i8 157.37 165.03
(b) Other Operating income 18 0.68 0.87
(c) Other income 19 3.03 2.46
Total income 161.08 168.36
II Expenses )
(a) Employee benefits expense 20 4.47 4.82
(b) Royalty 44.70 52.68
{¢) Finance costs 21 41.94 33.96
(d) Depreciation and amortization expense 4A & 4B 26,72 26.04
(e) Other expenses 22 70.25 78.32
Total expenses 188.08 185.82
III Loss before tax (27.01) (27.45)
IV Tax expense/(Benefit) 29
{a) Current tax
(b) Deferred tax 2.59 2.84
2.59 2.84
V Profit/(Loss) after tax (29.59) (30.30)
VI Other comprehensive Income /(Loss)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Re-measurement on defined benefit obligations (0.06) 0.05
VII Total comprehensive Income /(Loss) for the year {29.65) (36':2_57
VIII Earnings/ (Loss) per equity share
(a) Basic -Face value 10 /- 24 (6.28) (6.43)
(b) Diluted -Face value 10 /- 24 (6.28) (6.43)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

As por our
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report of even date

For APTANDCO LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 014621C/N500088

(i 4P

UTTAM PATEL

Hvderabad
farner % 5 9 N'014821C/
Membership No.: 079947 N500088

Place: Hyderabad
Date :

April 23, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chikkala Sateesh Kumar
Whole-time Director & CEQ
DIN : 08879426

(3N

. Q&—"‘a\
Gopal Mandelia
Chief Financial Officer

Ali Khan
Company Secretary

ICSI Membership No: ACS74667

Place: Visakhapatnam
Date : April 23, 2025

Anup Agarwal
Non-Executive Director
DIN : 08551388

Place: Delhi
Date : April 23, 2025




VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

As at
Particulars March 31, 2025
(INR Crores)

As at
March 31, 2024
(INR Crores)

A.

Cash flows from operating activities

Net (Loss) before tax (27.01) (27.45)
Adjustments for :

Depreciation and amortisation expense 26.72 26.04
Interest expense 41.94 33.96
Interest income (0.28) (0.57)
Realised and Unrealised gain on financial assets held for trading (0.38) (0.23)
Loss on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 0.00 0.62
Deferred government grant (1.40) (1.40)
Provisian for bad and doubtful debts = 0.69
Liabilities written off/Provision Written-back (0.13)

Net unrealised exchange (gain) / loss

Operating Profits before working capital changes 39.46 31.66
Adjusted for Changes in working capital ;

Waorking capital adjustments

(Increase)/Decrease in inventories (0.80) (0.13)
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables and loans (1.69) (7.81)
(Increase)/Decrease in other financial and non financial assets 2.67 (1.81)
Increase/(Decrease) in trade pavable 731 6.94
Increase/(Decrease) in other liabilities and provisions (4.06) 2.46
Cash flow generated from operations 42.89 31.31
Income tax (paid)/refund (net) 0.04 0.05
Net cash flow generated from operations (A) 42.93 31.36
Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment including intanqibles [1:23) (8.38)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment including intangibles

Purchases of short term investments (50.00) (42.50)
Proceeds from sale of short term investments 47.50 45.48
Bank Deposit made (0.50) 1.57
Interest received 0.25 _0.55
Net cash generated/({used in) investing activities (B) (3.98) (3.28)
Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment of term loans - (352.50)
Repayment of Inter company loan (126.15) (125,75)
Proceeds from Inter company loan (refer note 13 & 13A) 99.15 457.27
Interest and finance charges paid {12.76) (10.41)
Payment of Lease Liability (0.40) o
Net cash (used in) financing activities (C) (40.16) (31.39)
Net increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalent (A+B+C) (1.21) (3.30)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year (Refer note-10) 6.67 2.97
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer note -10) 5.45 _____6.67
Notes:

1. The figures in bracket indicates outflow.

2. The above cash flow has been prepared under the "indirect method" as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind As) 7 -Statement of Cash Flows.

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For APTAND CO LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 014621C/N500088

Chikkala Sateesh Kumar

Whole-time Director & CCO
DIN : 08879426
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Gopal Mandelia
Chief Financial Officer

UTTAM PATEL
Partner

Membership No,: 079947

Place: Hyderabad
Date : April 23, 2025

it Ali Khan
Company Secretary
I1CSI Membership No: AC574667

Place: Visakhapatnam
Date : April 23, 2025

Anup Agarwal
Non-Executive Director

DIN : 08551388

Place: Delhi
Date : April 23, 2025




VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

(a) Equity Share Capital

Particulars Number of shares INR Crores
As at March 31, 2024 4,71,08,000 47.11
As at March 31, 2025 4,71,08,000 47.11

Note:-There has been no movement in the equity share capital for the year ended March 31, 2025.

(b) Other Eguity
Particulars Share Retained earnings Total equity
Premium
Account
Balance as at March 31, 2023 135.00 (162.33) (27.33)
Loss for the year - (30.30) (30.30)
Equity share premium - = 5
Other comprehensive Income/ (loss) - 0.05 0.05
Balance as at March 31, 2024 135.00 (192.58) (57.58)
Retained earnings (refer note 13 (note ii)) - - “
Reduction in Deemed equity to converted - - E}
equity shares
Profit /(Loss) for the vear - (29.59) {29.59)
Equity share premium - - -
Other comprehensive Income/ (loss) i (0.06) (0.06)
Balance as at March 31, 2025 135.00 (222.22) (87.23)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

As per our report of even date
ForAPTAND CO LLP

Chartered Accountants

irm Reaistration No. 014621C/N500088
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Date : April 23, 2025

Anup Agarwal
Non-Executive Director
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VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

1.

2.

a)

b)

Company Overview

Vizag General Cargo Berth Private Limited (the “Company”) has been set up to develop,
establish, construct, operate and maintain a project related to mechanization of coal
handling facilities and upgradation of general cargo berth at outer harbour of
Visakhapatnam Port (the "Project”) under design, build, finance, operate and transfer
("DBFOT"”) basis. A 'Concession Agreement' entered into between the Company and
Board of Trustees for Vishakhapatnam Port (the “Concessioning Authority”) granted the
Company an exclusive licence for designing, engineering, financing, constructing,
equipping, operating and maintaining the Project.

The concession is granted for a period of 30 years commencing from October 8, 2010 i.e.
date of award of concession. The Company started its commercial operations effective
March 15, 2013. The Company is entitled to recover tariff notified from time to time by
the Tariff Authority for Major Ports, from the users of project facilities and services. On
the expiry of the concession period the Company shall transfer the project assets to the
concessioning authority in accordance with the concession agreement.

The registered office of the Company is SIPCOT Industrial Complex Madurai Bye Pass
Road, T. V. Puram P.O Thoothukudi Tamil Nadu 628002 India. The financial statements
were approved for issuance by the Directors on April 23, 2025.

Basis of preparation
Basis of preparation and compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 (as amended from time to time) and other relevant provisions of the Companies

Act, 2013 (the Act).

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued
accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard
requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using historical
cost convention and on an accrual method of accounting, except for certain financial
assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value (Refer note 3(d) below).

Vedanta Limited, the parent Company has through letter of support, agreed to continue
to provide financial support to the Company for its continued operations at least for next
eighteen months if the Company is unable to meet its funding requirements.
Accordingly, these financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.




VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

3. Significant accounting policies

The Company has applied the following accounting policies to all periods presented in
these financial statements.

a) Property, Plant and Equipment

Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses.

The initial cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price,
including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, and any directly
attributable costs of bringing an asset to working condition and location for its
intended use. It also includes the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and
removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. Spares are
capitalized when they meet the definition of property, plant and equipment.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful
lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of
property, plant and equipment. Likewise, on initial recognition expenditure to be
incurred towards major inspections and overhauls are identified as a separate
component and depreciated over the expected period till the next overhaul
expenditure.

Land acquired free of cost or at below market rate from the government is
recognized at fair value with corresponding credit to deferred income.

Subsequent costs and disposal

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is
added to its book value only if it increases the future economic benefits from the
existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance/life. All other
expenses on existing property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair and
maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement
of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred,

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment, and are recognized net within other income/other
expenses in statement of profit and loss.

Depreciation

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line
method (SLM) to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated
useful lives (determined by the management based on technical estimates) as given
below. Management’'s assessment of independent technical evaluation/advice takes
into account, inter alia, the nature of the assets, the estimated usage of the assets,
the operating conditions of the assets, past history of replacement and maintenance
support. The asset's residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Hyderabad
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VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

The estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:

Asset _ Useful life (in
years)
Office equipment 5
Vehicles 8
Furniture and fixture 10

b) Intangible assets

- Port concession rights

The Port concession rights as “Intangible Assets” arising from a service concession
arrangement, in which the grantor controls or regulates the services provided and the
prices charged, and also controls any significant residual interest in the infrastructure
such as property, plant and equipment, irrespective whether the infrastructure is
existing infrastructure of the grantor or the infrastructure is constructed or purchased
by the company as part of the service concession arrangement. Such an intangible
asset is recognised initially at cost determined as the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the construction service delivered and is capitalised when
the project is complete in all respects. Port concession rights also include certain
property, plant and equipment in accordance with Appendix A of Ind AS 11 ‘Service
Concession Arrangements’.

Port concession rights are amortised on a straight line a basis based on the lower of
their useful lives or the concession period (presently 30 years).

Any addition to the port concession rights or property, plant and equipment are
measured at fair value on recognition and amortised over its useful assets.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of port concession rights are measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the
asset is de-recognised.

- Other intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets are amortised over their estimated useful life. Software is
amortised using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of five years
or the tenure of the respective software license, whichever is lower. The amortization
period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial year end.
If the expected useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous




VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
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estimates, the change is accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting
estimate.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment charges and reversals are assessed at the level of cash-generating units.
A cash-generating unit (CGU) is the smallest identifiable group of assets that
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other
assets or group of assets.

The company assess at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an
asset may be impaired. The company conducts an internal review of asset values
annually, which is used as a source of information to assess for any indications of
impairment or reversal of previously recognised impairment losses. External factors,
such as changes in expected future prices, costs and other market factors are also
monitored to assess for indications of impairment or reversal of previously
recognised impairment losses.

If any such indication exists then an impairment review is undertaken and the
recoverable amount is calculated, as the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and the asset's value in use.

Fair value less costs of disposal is the price that would be received to sell the asset in
an orderly transaction between market participants and does not reflect the effects
of factors that may be specific to the entity and not applicable to entities in general.
These cash flows are discounted at an appropriate post tax discount rate to arrive at
the net present value.

Value in use is determined as the present value of the estimated future cash flows
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset in its present form and its
eventual disposal. The cash flows are discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
Value in use is determined by applying assumptions specific to the Company's
continued use and cannot take into account future development. These assumptions
are different to those used in calculating fair value and consequently the value in use
calculation is likely to give a different result to a fair value calculation.

The carrying amount of the CGU is determined on a basis consistent with the way
the recoverable amount of the CGU is determined.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset or CGU is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss.

Any reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is limited to the extent
that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined if no impairment loss had previously been recognised.




VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

d) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity
and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

(i) Financial Assets - Recognition

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial
assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade
date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in below
categories:

¢ Debt instruments at amortised cost

A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions

are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for
collecting contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance
income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the
profit or loss.

e Debt instruments at fair value through other Comprehensive income
(FVOCI)

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVOCI if both of the following criteria are
met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual
cash flows and selling the financial assets, and

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.
Debt instruments included within the FVOCI category are measured initially as well

as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in other
comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income,

Hyderabad
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VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the profit and
loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified from the equity to profit and loss.
Interest earned whilst holding fair value through other comprehensive income debt
instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

* Debt instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does
not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVOCI, is classified
as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise
meets amortised cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is
allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition
inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The Company has not
designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with
all changes recognized in profit or loss.

» Equity Instruments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity
instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by
an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are classified
as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an
irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent
changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-
by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is
irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVOCI, then all fair
value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI.
There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to profit and loss, even on sale of
investment. However, the Company may transfer the

cumulative gain or loss within equity. For equity instruments which are classified
as FVTPL, all subsequent fair value changes are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

(ii) Financial Assets - Derecognition

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the rights te receive the contractual cash
flows on the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred.
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(iiif) Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL)

model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial

assets:

* Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost
e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits and trade receivables

e Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVOCI Trade
receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that
result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115

The Company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss
allowance on trade receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track
changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

At each reporting date, for recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets
and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a
significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not
increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss.
However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a
subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no
longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity
reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the
lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to
receive, discounted at the original EIR.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) during the year is recognized as
income/ expense in profit or loss. The balance sheet presentation for various
financial instruments is described below:

a) Financial assets measured at amortised cost: ECL is presented as an
allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the
balance sheet. The Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the
gross carrying amount.

b) Debt instruments measured at FVOCI: Since financial assets are already
reflected at fair value, impairment allowance is not further reduced from its




VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

value. Rather, ECL amount is presented as ‘accumulated impairment amount’ in
the OCI.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines
financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the
objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in
credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI)
financial assets, i.e., financial assets which are credit impaired on
purchase/origination.

(iv) Financial liabilities — Recognition and Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities fair value
through profit or loss, or as loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans,
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables and borrowings.

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification,
as described below:

« Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included as finance costs in profit or loss.

« Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held
for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also
includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109.
Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they
are designated as effective hedging instruments.
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Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or
loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria
in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/losses
attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in

OCI. These gains/ losses are not subsequently transferred to profit or loss. However,
the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other
changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through
profit and loss.

(v) Financial liabilities - Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or
loss.

(vi) Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets
of any entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs, if any.

(vii) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in
the balance sheet if there is a currentiy enforceabie legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

(viii) Income/loss recognition
« Interest income

Interest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate
method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the
Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms
of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar
options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.
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e) Leases

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases,
except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company
recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i) Right-of-use assets :
The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease
(i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are
measured at cost, less any accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the
estimated useful lives of the assets.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting
policies in section (p) Impairment of non-financial assets.

ii) Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities
measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term.
The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as
expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date,
the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease
liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a
change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in
the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

ifi) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term
leases of machinery and equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option).
It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office
equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term

basis over the lease term.

Hyvderabad

N'014621C/
N500088




VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

f)

g)

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the
same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are earned.

Inventories

Inventories comprise of stores and spares which are valued at the lower of cost
determined on weighted average cost basis and the net realisable value after
providing for obsolescence and other losses, where considered necessary. Cost
includes all charges in bringing the goods to the point of sale, including octroi and
other levies, transit insurance and receiving charges.

Net realizable value is based on estimated selling price less further costs expected to
be incurred to completion and disposal.

Government Grant

Grants and subsidies from the government are recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that (i) the Company will comply with the conditions attached to them,
and (ii) the grant/subsidy will be received.

When the grant or subsidy relates to revenue, it is recognised as income on a
systematic basis in the consolidated statement of profit and loss over the periods
necessary to match them with the related costs, which they are intended to
compensate.

Where the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as deferred income and released
to income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset and
presented within other income.

When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant
are recorded at fair value amounts and released to profit or loss over the expected
useful life in a pattern of consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset.

When loans or similar assistance are provided by governments or related
institutions, with an interest rate below the current applicable market rate, the effect
of this favourable interest is regarded as a government grant. The loan or assistance
is initially recognised and measured at fair value and the government grant is
measured as the difference between the initial carrying value of the loan and the
proceeds received. The loan is subsequently measured as per the accounting policy
Applicable to financial liabilities,
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h)

Taxation
Tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using the tax
rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date and includes any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided, using the balance sheet method, on all temporary
differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax assets are
recognized only to the extent that it is more likely than not that they will be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply to the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date. Tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized
outside profit or loss either in Other Comprehensive Income or Equity.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and is
adjusted to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Employee benefits
(i) Short-term employee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee
services are classified as short-term employee benefits. These benefits include
salaries and wages, performance incentives and compensated absences which are
expected to occur in next twelve months. The undiscounted amount of

short-term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for employee services is
recognized as an expense as the related service is rendered by employees.

(ii) Post-Employment benefits

s Gratuity
In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act of 1972, the Company
contributes to a defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan”). The Gratuity Plan
provides a lump sum payment to employees who have completed at least 5 years
of service; at retirement, disability or termination of employment being an
amount equal to 15 day's salary (based on the respective employee’s last drawn
salary) for every completed year of service.

Based on actuarial valuations conducted as at year end, a provision is recognized
in full for the benefit obligation over and above the funds held in the Gratuity
Plan.
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In respect of defined benefit schemes, the assets are held in separately
administered funds. The cost of providing benefits under the plans is determined
by actuarial valuation separately each year using the projected unit credit
method by independent qualified actuary as at the year end.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the
asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined
benefit liability and the return on plan assets {excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognized immediately in the
balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through
OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to
the Statement of Profit and Loss in subsequent periods.

The Company recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit
cbligation as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

= Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and
losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
- Net interest expense or income

s Provident Fund
The Company offers retirement benefits to its employees, under provident fund
scheme which is a defined contribution plan. The Company and employees
contribute at predetermined rates to the fund administered and managed by
Government of India {GOI). The Company has no further obifigation under this
scheme beyond its contribution towards provident fund which is recognized as an
expense in the Statement of profit and loss in the period it is incurred.

o Luperdaiiniualion
Certain employees of the Company, eligible for the Superannuation plan. The
Company make periodic contribulion to superannuation plan of Life Insurance
Corporation of India. The Company has no further obligations to the Plan beyond
s rmonihily condnbubons, The contnboion s recogmzed s an expense ur (he
Statement of Profit and Loss.

(iii) Other Long-Term Employee benefits

s Compensated absences

The Company has & policy on compensaled absences which are both
accumulating and non-accumulating in nature. The expected cost of
accumulating compensated absences is determined by actuarial valuation
perfiormed by an independent actuary at each balance sheet date using
projeciad unit credit method on the additional amount expected to be
paid/availed as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the
balance sheel dale. Expense on non-accumulating comnensated absences is
recoghized in the period in which the absences ocour,
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i)

k)

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive), as a result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of
resources, that can be reliably estimated, will be required to settle such an
obligation, though the amount or timing is uncertain.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows to net present value using an appropriate
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Unwinding of the
discount is recognized in the statement of profit and loss as a finance cost.
Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the
current best estimate.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose
existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation
that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare
cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be
measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but
discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Contingent assets are not recognized but disclosed in the financial statements when
an inflow of economic bencfits is probable. '

Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or
services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue
arrangements, except for the agency services below, because it typically controls the
goods or services before transferring them to the customer... As per the Company's
current revenue recognition practices, transfer of control happens at the same point
as transfer of risk and rewards thus

not effecting the revenue recognition. The amount of revenue recognized reflects the
consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services. Revenue from cargo handling and storage is recognized in the
period to which it relates based on the service performed. Revenue is measured
based on the rates specified / agreed in the contract with customers.

Contract balances
Contract assets

A contract asset is initially recognised for revenue earned from installation services
because the receipt of consideration is conditional on successful completion of the
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installation. Upon completion of the installation and acceptance by the customer, the
amount recognised as contract assets is reclassified to trade receivables.

Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment. Refer to accounting policies
on impairment of financial assets in section b) Financial instruments - initial
recognition and subsequent measurement.

Trade receivables

A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.c.,
only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).
Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in section (t) Financial instruments -
initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due
(whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Company transfers the related
goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company
performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services
to the customer

The Company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the
transfer of the promised goods or services to the customer and payment by the
customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the Company does not adjust any of
the transaction prices for the time value of money.

Accounting for foreign currency transactions

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates (‘the
functional currency”). The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR),
which is the Company’s functional currency.

Iransactions in currencies other than the functional currency are translated into the
functional currency at the exchange rates ruling at the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in other currencies are translated into
the functional currency at exchange rates prevailing on the reporting date. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in other currencies and measured at
historical cost or fair value are translated at the exchange rates prevailing on the
dates on which such values were determined.

All exchange differences are included in profit or loss except any exchange
differences on monetary items designated as an effective hedging instrument of the
currency risk of the designated forecasted sales or purchases, which are recognized
in the other comprehensive income.
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m) Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) data for its
equity shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit
or loss attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

n) Current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current /
non-current classification.
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
= [t is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the
Company’s normal operating cycle.
s Itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
« Itis expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or
¢ It is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or
used to settle a liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

« [t is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

= TItis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

» Itis due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

» The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability
that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the
issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current only. The operating
cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months
as its operating cycle.

o) Borrowing costs
Borrowing cost includes interest expense as per Effective Interest Rate (EIR).

Borrowing costs directly relating to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying capital project under construction are capitalised and added to the project
cost during construction until such time that the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use i.e. when they are capable of commercial production. Where funds
are borrowed specifically to finance a project, the amount capitalised represents the
actual borrowing costs incurred. Where surplus funds are available out of money
borrowed specifically to finance a project, the income generated from such current
investments is deducted from the total capitalized borrowing cost, Where the funds
used to finance a project form part of general borrowings, the amount capitalised is
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calculated using a weighted average of rates applicable to relevant general
borrowings of the Company during the year. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is
suspended and charged to profit and loss during the extended periods when the
active development on the qualifying assets is interrupted.

EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts
over the expected life of the financial liability or a shorter period, where appropriate,
to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest
rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension,
call and similar options).

p) Segment reporting

Identification of segments:

The Company's operating businesses are organized and managed separately
according to the nature of products and services provided, with each segment
representing a strategic business unit that offers different products and serves
different markets. The analysis of geographical segments is based on the
geographical location of the customers.

Segment accounting policies:

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting
policies adopted for preparing and presenting the financial statements of the
Company as a whole.

q) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term
money market deposits with original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of
cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts
as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management.

r) _Fair Value Measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at
each balance sheel date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

. In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for
the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

Hvderabad

N:014621C/
N500088




VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

s)

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest. '

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in
its highest and best use.
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances
and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use
of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:
» Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities.
e Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.
« Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is unobservable.
For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a
recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of
assets and liabilities on the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability

and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Share-based payments

The Company does not have any outstanding share based payments. Vedanta
Limited ("VL"), the immediate holding company offers certain share based incentives
under the Long-Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP”) to employees and directors of the
Company and its subsidiaries. VL recovers the proportionate cost (calculated based
on the grant date fair value of the options granted) from the respective group
companies, which is charged to the statement of profit and loss.

t) Ind AS 116: Leases

Ind AS 116 standard introduced a single lessee accounting model and requires a
lessee to recognize a 'right of use asset' (ROU) and a corresponding 'lease liability’
for all leases with the exception of short-term (under 12 months) and low-value
leases. Lease costs has been recognised in the income statement over the lease term
in the form of depreciation on the ROU asset and finance charges representing the
unwinding of the discount on the lease liability. In contrast, the accounting
requirements for lessors remain largely unchanged.

The Standard, in addition to increasing the Company's recognised assets and
liabilities, impacted the classification and timing of expenses and consequently the
classification between cash flow from operating activities and cash flow from
financing activities. Many commonly used financial ratios and performance metrics,
using existing definitions, have also impacted including gearing, EBITDA, unit costs
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and operating cash flows. However, implementation of Ind AS 116 didn’'t have a
material effect on the Company’s Financial Statements,

Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially unchanged from Ind AS 17,
lLessors will continue to classify leases as either operating or finance leases using
similar principles as in Ind AS 17. Therefore, Ind AS 116 does not have any material
impact for leases where the Company is the lessor.

u) Appendix C to Ind AS 12 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment

The appendix addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments
involve uncertainty that affects the application of Ind AS 12 Income Taxes. It does
not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of Ind AS 12, nor does it specifically
include requirements relating to interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax
treatments. The Appendix specifically addresses the following:

= Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately

o The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by
taxation authorities

¢ How an entity determines taxable profit {tax loss), tax bases, unutilised tax
losses, unutilised tax credits and tax rates

< How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances

The Company determines whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment
separately or together with one or more other uncertain tax treatments and uses the
approach that better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty, There is no impact of
the appendix on Company’s financial statement.

3.1 Critical estimates and judgements in applying accounting policies

T preparsiion of the finanoal statements in conformity with Ind A% which requires
management 1o make judgements, estimates and assumptions that afiect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income, expenses and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
these financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and axpenses for
tho years presented. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different
assumptions and conditions.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the peried in which the estimate is revised
and future periods affected.

The management believes thal the estimates used in preparation of the financial
statements are prudent and reasonable. Information about significant arca of

Lion nstuf L‘él!i(ii jl}éflii*lilf’iii‘ﬁ Hir_!l_,_?i—’ i e;}; piyilqrj o nlgi:%in-; gsr)w 1oy 'I?d! 1 B
the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are
as follows:
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VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

Estimates

i)

i)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of
each reporting period. This reassessment may result in change in depreciation
expense in future periods.

Impairment Assessment

In view of the continuing losses despite increased business operations, the
Company has reviewed the carrying value of its assets and estimated the value in
use basis the discounted cash flow projections in accordance with the requirements
of Ind AS 36. Based on the said assessment, it has been concluded that the value
in use is higher than its carrying value as at 31 March 2025 and therefore, no
impairment was required to be recorded in these financial statements. The
Cempany has used key inputs centered around the forecasted revenue, operating
and fixed costs, finance costs weightage average cost of capital ete.

Critical fudaments

Contingencies

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation,
taxation and other claims against the Company. Where it is management’s
assessment that the outcome cannot be reliably guantified or is uncertain, the

[ S R H [P B e Y.
e ; [t

Y s dimiiy -

Losadidike

autcame iz remote. Such babilities are disclosed in the o

or in the financial statements.

While considering the possible, probable and remote analysis of taxation, legal and
other claims, there is always a certain degres of judgement involved pertaining Lo
the application of the legislation which i certain cases is supporied by views of tax
experts and/or earlier precedents in similar matters. Although there can be no
assurance regarding the final outcome of the legal proceedings, the Company does
not expect them to have a materially adverse impact on the Company’s financial

pasition or profitability.

3.2 Application of new standards and amendments

The Company has adopted, with effect from 01 Aprit 2021, the following new and revised
standards and interpretations. Their adoption has not had any significant impact on the
amounts reported in the financial statements.

1.

Hyderabad
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Amendments to Tnd AS 103 regarding the definition of identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition
method;

- Amendmenis to Ind AS 107, 109, 104 and 116 regarding Interest Rate Benchmark

Reform - Phase 2:

. Conceptual framework for financial reporting under Ind AS issued by the ICAL;
- Amendments Lo Ind AS 116 regarding COVID-19 related rent concessions;




VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

5. Amendments to Ind AS 105, 16 and 28 regarding definition of recoverable amount.

Standards notified but not yet effective

Amendments to Ind AS that are notified, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance
of the Company’s financial staternents are not expected to have a significant impact on
the Company’s financial statements. The Company has not early adopted any
amendments that has been notified but is not yet effective.
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VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT & CWIP

- o . B S N R S N e e s (INR Crores)
Particulars Land - freechald ’7 Elirditareand Office equipment Total Cap;::)lg::;k - g:;iatla:ﬁ!:::';r?

Fixtures (cwip) Progress

GROSS BLOCK
AT 31 March 2023 0.07 1.00| 4.99 6.06 0.00 6.06
Additions - - - o 0.27 0.27
Transfors/Reclassifications =| - 0.16 0.16 (0.16) e
Deletions - = - = = =
AT 31 Mar 2024 0.07 1.00 5.15 6.22 0.12 6.34
Additions & = ol 0.50 0.50
Transfers/Reclassifications - - 0.52 0.52 0.52) -
Deletions = i 4 - = =
AT 31 Mar 2025 0.07 1.00 5.66 6.73 0.10 6.84
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
AT 31 March 2023 - 0.97 3.72 4.69 - 4.69
Depreciation for the year by 0.02 0.44 0.46 = 0.46]
Deprecigtionon Deletions | — e = —_— e a 2
AT 20924 .. . | SISO |5} - sy 5.15 o I 5.15
Depreciation for the year = 0.00 0.47 o= 0.47
Depreciation on Deletions 5 « & 2 2 =
AT 31 Mar 2025 = 0.99 4.63 5.62 - 5.62
NET BOOK VALUE
AT 31 March 2024 0.07 0.01 0.98 1.07 0.12 1.19
AT 31 March 2025 0.07 0.01 1.03 1.12 0.10 1.22

Intangible Assets & CWIP
(INR Crores)

Capital Work in | Total Including

Port Concession | Computer Soft

Particulars i Total rogress Capital Work in
Rights ware p{c!g'JE_l Progress
SRossBLock 000 0 0 [ 0 [ USRS, | P I SNEE———
AT 31 March 2023 688.80 0.59 689.40 4.43 693.82
Additions = = & 8.65 8.65
Iransfers/Recdassifications - 6.25 (6.25) =
Deletions = 1.04 = 1.04
AT 31 Mar2024 . ; B 2| 0.59 694,61 6.82 701.43]
Additions = 1.44] 1.44 4.54 5.97
Transfers/Reclassifications 4.54 = 4.59 (4.51) -
Effect of fereign currency exchanqe differences 5 - = s
Deletions I 3.84 & 3.84 = 3.84
AT 31 Mar 2025 694.71 2.03 696.74 6.83 703.57
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION | |
|AT 31 March 2023 | 244.96 0.59 245.55 = 245.56
Depreciation for the year 25.58 - 25,58 - 25.58
Depreciation on Deletions e 0.42 o - o 042] 0000 - 0.42
AT 31 Mar 2024 270.12 0.59 270.71 - 270.71
Depreciation for the year 25.92 0.33 26.26 - 26.26
Depreciation on Deletions 0,12 0.12 = 0.12
AT 31 Mar 2025 295.93 0.92 296.84 - 296.84

NET BOOK VALUE

AT 31 March 2023 S e azeal 000 —
AT 31 Mar 2024 o 1 423.89 0.00 o
|AT 31 Mar 2025 ) [ 398.79 1.11

CWIP ageing schedule for projects in progress as at March 31, 2025

(INR Crores)
Particulars As-at Anat
Rl | March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024 |

I ess than 1 year 3.85 5.46
1-2 years 1.85 1.49
2-3 years 1.24 -
|More than 3 years N 2 =
Total 6.94 6.99

CWIP completion schedule for projects whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan :

S O i e e (INR Crores)
As at 31 March 2025 =
To be completed in

| Less than 1 year | 1-2 years More than 2 years

e npnan sor oo CNITIR
Projects in progress
Additional Conveyor from Transfer Tower #6 to
Line #9 Plot * 5.26

*Note :

The additional conveyor from transfer tower no. 6 to L9 plot project was ordered with Effective Order Date (EOD) of 20th May 2022. The scope included design, procurement
and construction within 6 months of EOD. However, the design finalisation took longer time considering port related aspects and also the soil conditions were not favourable
2s envisaged and required corrections to be done for ground stability. Alse though vendor encountered certain financial instability in timely completion, however majority of
the scope of work under the project has been completed as on 31st March 2025 including design, civil works, structural works, chute modification etc. The project is expected
to be completed by June 2025




VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING FART OF THE_FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AY AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 |

Non Current financial assets As ot ARl T
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
{INR Crores) fINR Cr

Unsecured, considered avod
Trade rocovable - -

Unsecured, considered Boubtful

Trade recoivable- Cred it Imoaired - 0.09

Less: Provision for doubtful Trade Recoivahles I - (0.08)

Other finoncial assets TTTTTAset T 7T TTasatt
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

{INW Crores) _ .. . {IMNR Creres)

Kon current
{Unsecured. considered cood)

Security deposits 320 379
3.20 e 3020
Current
IUnsecured. considered aood)
{a} Security Deposits 0.14 0.16
(b} Interest accrued on deposits measures at amartised cost 0.08 0.05
fe) Contract Asscts o . 0.76 . 0.80_
[N 7 | S TF &
Inventories As at As at
March 31. 2025 March 31. 7024

roresy _

Stores and spares 4.35% 3.54

{ior mothed of valudtion of inventories refer note-3(N)
HNote:- The company recognised Nen moving items as at Harch 33, 2025 of Rs, 0.04
Crores (March 31, 2024 of Rs. 0.07 Crores)

Current Envestments Asat’ As at
March 31, 2025 Morch 31, 2024
__{INRCrares) (INR Crores)
Investmaohts in muotual funds carned at Far velue through PEL 2.08 {0.00}
Agaroaate amount of quated Investmant i Muteal fund

Aateeaole amount of unooeted Investment in Molual fund 288 {0.00)

{this epace has boon intenbonaity foft blank)
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Trade receivables

Unsecured, considered aood (Refer Notes below)
Provision for doubtful Trade Receivables

Particulars

Secured, Disputed
Unhilled
Not due
Less than 6 months
6 months 1 year
1-2 Years
2-3 years
More than 3 vears
Sub Total
Secured, Unisputed
Unbilled
Not due
Less than 6 months
6 months 1 year
1-2 Years
2-3 years
More than 3 years
Sub Total
Unsecured, Disputed
Unbilled
Not due
Less than 6 months
6 months 1 ycar
1-2 Years
2-3 years
More than 3 years
Sub Total
Unsecured, Undisputed
Unbilled
Not due
Less than 6 months
6 months 1 year
1-2 Years
2-3 vears
More than 3 years
Sub Tatal
Less: Provision for expected credit loss
Total

Notes:
Trade receivables from a related party
(Refer note 28)

VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE_FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

As at As at
March 31. 2025 March 31. 2024
. [INRCrores)___ __(INRCrores)
15,39 17.57
o teasy o (0.16)
19.23 17.41
As at As at

March 31, 2025

19.39

1923

Ihe total contract assets as at March 31, 2025; March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 were Rs, 0.84 Crores, Rs, 0.90 Crores Rs. 0.66 crores respectively.

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks in current accounts

Other Assets

(unsecured, considered qood)

Non Current

(a) Balance with covernment authorities
{h) Canital Advances

Current

(a) Advance to suonliers

(b) Prenaid exoenses

{c) Balance with covernment authorities

{d) Export Incentive receivable (Refer below note)

(this space has been intentionally left blank)

As
March 31. 2075
(INR Crores)

215

As at
March 31, 2025
{INR Crores)_

0.00
0.00

0.3
0.55
177

[ e

273

March 31, 2024

17.57
0.16_
_17.42

2.05

March 31. 2024

(INR Crores)

6.67
6.67

~ Asat
March 31, 2024
{INR Crores)

0.10
0.10

=

‘edeyyes

Wweu
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VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

12

As at
March 31, 2025

Share capital

As at
March 31, 2024

Number of Amount in Number of shares Amount in
shares Crores Crores
Authorised
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each with voting rights 5,00,00,000 50.00 5.00,00,000 50.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
Equity shares of Rs.10 each with voting rights 4,71,08,000 47.11 4,71,08,000 47.11
4,71,08,000 47.11 4,71,08,000 47.11
{i) There has been no movement in the equity share capital for the year ended Mar 31, 2025.
(ii} Details of shares held by the holding Company (including nominee) :
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Number of % of Holding Number of shares % of Holding
—_shares held held
Vedanta Limited, holding Company 4,71,08,000 100% 4,71,08,000 100%
(iii} Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares :
Name of Shareholder As at As at o
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 .
Number of % of Holding Number of shares % of Holding
shares held held
(a) Vedanta Limited (including nominee) 4,71,08,000 100% 4,71,08,000 100%
({iv) Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters and Promoter Group
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Promoter Name Number of " %of % Change Number of % of % Change
Shares held holding during the Shares held helding during the
{in Crore} year (in Crore) year
Vedanta Limited 4,71 100% 4.71 100%
(v) The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share and dividend

as and when declared by the company. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual
General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend which is paid as and when declared by Board of Directors. In the cvent of liquidation of the Company, holder of
equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to their sharehalding.

(this space has been intentionally left blank)
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VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED

13

Non current barrowings

Secured {measured at amortised cost)

Unsecured (measured at amortised cost)
(a) Liability component of compound financial instruments

(b}

Financial liabilities - Borrowinas

Loan from Related Parties

Less: Current maturities of leng term borrowings
(Refer note 13(A)

Total non-current financial liabilities - Borrowings (Net)

Total Borrowinas (A+B)
Total secured borrowinas
Total unsecured borrowinas

Movement in borrowings during the vear is provided below,

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2025
{INR Crores)

As at
March 31, 2024
(INR Crores)

Particulars Borrowings Due Borrowings
with in one year | Due after one Total
year

As at March 31, 2023 352.50 |  59.25 | _411.75 |
Proceeds from Inter company loan-Vedanta Ltd 262.00 262.00
Proceeds from Inter company loan-SMCL {former MVPL) 186.02 9.25 195.27
Repayment of IndusInd Loan (352.50) (352.50)
Repayment of Inter company loan-Vedanta Ltd (125.75) (125.75)
As at Mar 31, 2024 e 322.27 68.50 | _390.77
Proceeds from Inter company loan-Vedanta Ltd - -
Froceeds from Inter company loan-SMCL (former MVPL) 99.15 99.15
Repayment of Indusind Loan o s
Repayment of Inter company loan-Vedanta Ltd _(126.15) ] (126.15)
As at Mar 31, 2025 B 295,27 68.50 | 363.77

(this space has been intentionally left blank)
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VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED
..__MOTES FORMING PART OF THE_FINANCIAL STATEMENYS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED

Current financial liabilities - Borrowings

Unsecured
{8} Lean from related party-{Refer note 28 and below note )

Total

ﬁorruwings

Laan from Relaled Party - Vedanta Limited
Loan from Relsted Party - Sess Mining Cerporation Limited
(f ormerly known as Maritime Venlures Private Limited)

Borrowings

Loan from Related Party'r - Vedanta Limited -
Toan fram Related Party - Sesa Mining Corporation Limiled
(Formerdy known as Maritime Ventures Privote Limited)

Terms of repayment of total borrowings outstanding as at 31st Mar 2024

Mot {i).Terms of repayment of total borrowings outstanding as at 31st Mar 2025 are provided below:

MARCH 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2025
(ENK Croras)

As at
March 31, 2024
[INR Crarcs)

295.27 322.27
-~ - > 1
[ R et e - - —
Waighted <1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years >5 years Total
Average Interest
rate as at J1st
March 2025
T g T i3.10 | ~ - o Tigso | 3Luo !
8.55% 282.17 %0.00 33287,
are provided below:
“Tweighted ™ <1 yoar T T1-3years a-5years  [»5years " Jrowi
average interest
rate as at 31st
March2024 . _ 4 | e -
7.75% 136.25 - - 18.50 154,75
8.13% 186.02 - - 50.60 736.07

14 Other Hohbilities

Non Curcent
{a} Cclerred government grant jrefer note {{i} below]

Current

fa) Staturory liabHitles

b1 Advance fram customers Frefer note (1) belowl
(c} Peoforrod government grant {refer note (4) below]
{1 Dthers

advaney from o

eapocted to bt setthed wittun the noxt 12 moaths has been classficd as i current Hability.

(Y b S

ot prenit gnd loss o0 o syTtemate

(Hais wpace has koo intontionati I plank}

T
March 31, 2025
{INR Crores)

20.23

0.56
084
140
0Bt

{INR Crores)

264

March 31, 2024

21,63

4.61
2.5%
1.10
nta
B.74

vance from customers arg condragt Habiitics. The gpening balance as at the start of the year was Rs.2.55 Crores, The advance payment will be scttiad by providing pocd eperarus
5 s par teime of respaitive agroement, As theae oo contracts that e company eaptcls ond has ability, 1o fulfill through delecery of moq financiat toms, thein are reengii
and will Lo released o slatement af peofd and Joss gzczunl iy teapectee seevice delivered under e agreement b portion of the advaten T e

mpany has acquired cartaln plant and machinery on o cancessional rate of doty as against which it has undortaken to make exporis. The govermnment grant is reloased 1o i
Lanes over 3 poned of me




VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED
o NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

15  Current financial liabilities-Trade payables Asat  Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(INR Crores) (INR Crores)

i) (a) Total Outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises 0.93 1:21,
and Small Enterprises{refer note 1 below)
(b) Total Outstanding dues of Creditors other 80.94 73.36
than Micre Enterprises and Small Enterprises
Trade pavables to related parties (refer note - 28)

81.87 ) 74.57
Trade pavables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled in 30 davs terms.
Note-1 Disclosures as required by the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006:

pacticul As at As at
feuars __March 31,2025  March 31,2024
Undisputed Dues - MSME
Unbilled
Mot due 0.71
Less than 1 year 0.22 1.21
1-2 Years
2-3 years
More than 3 years
Undisputed Dues - Others
Unbilled 47.82 41.91
Nat due 6.17 >
Less than 1 year 9.12 23.91
1-2 Years 10.67 3.74
2-3 years 3.52 2.81
More than 3 years 3.65 0.99
Disputed Dues - MSME N 2
Unbilled : =
Not due z =
Less than 1 vear " 4
1-2 Years - -
7-3 years = -
Mare than 3 vears - z
Disputed Dues - Others & -
Unbilled = =
Net due ; :
Less than L year & -
1-2 Years = -
2-3 years - -
More than 3 years Sup—— R
_B1.87 __ 74.57
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

(INR Crores) (INR Crores)

(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the 0.93 1.21
accounting year

(ii} Interest due thercon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the = =
accounting year

(iif) The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment made to & -
the supplier beyond the appointed day

(iv)The amount of interest due and payable for the year h -

(v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the = =
accounting year

(vi) The amount of further inferest due and payable even in the succeeding year, = 2
until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid




VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

16 Other financial liabilities As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(INR Crores) _ (INR Crores)

Non Current

Current
(a) Interest accrued but not due on borrowinas (refer note 28) 63.64 34.57
{b) Securitv deposit fram vendars 2.67 1.69
{d) Liability for Unpaid Waaes - 2
(e} Others -
17 Provisions As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(INR Crores) {INR Crores)
Non Current
{a) Provision far emplovee benefits (net)
- Provision for aratuity (refer note 27) 0.43 0.31
Current
(&) Provision for emplovee benefits (net)
- Provision for compensated absences 0.18 0.18

(this space has been intentionally left blank)
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VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

18 Revenue from operations

Revenue from contract with customers (Sale of services)
- Income from port operations

(a

(b

Other operatina revenues
- Scrap sales

19 Other income

(a) Net gain on redemption/sale/Fair value on financial assets carried at FVTPL

(b} Interest income from financial assets measured at amortised costs

(¢} Luidation damaaes

{d) Amortization of deferred revenue arising from aovernment arant (refer note 14)
{c) Liabilities written off/Provision Written-back

(f} Miscellaneous income

20 Employee benefits expense

(a) Salaries and Waaes

(b} Share based pavment to emplovees (refer note 26)

(c) Contributions to provident and other funds (refer note 27)
(d) Staff welfare expenses

21 Finance Cost

(3} Interest expense on financial habilities at amortised cost (refer note 16)
- on loans from related party measured at amartised cost
- on buvers credit measured at amortised cost
- on debentures measured at amortised cost
- on Term Loan measured at amortised cost
- Others
Other borrowing costs {refer note 28)
Bank Gurantee Charyes
- Corporate Gurantee Charges
- Fees for Borrowing
- Bank Charges
- Forward Premium
(c} Service cost on defined benefit plan

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(INR Crores) (INR Crores)
157.37 165.03
0.68 0.87
158.06 165.90
As at As at

March 31, 2025
(INR Crores)

March 31, 2024
{INR Crores)

0.38 0.23
0.28 0.57
1.40 1.40
0.13 ~

0.83 0.26
3.03 2.46

As at
March 31, 2025
{(INR Crores)

As at
March 31, 2024
(INR Crores)

3.91 3.74
0.04 0.51
0.52 0.53
0.00 0.04
4.47 4.82
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(INR Crores) _(INR Crores)
41.68 33.44
0.24 0.50
0.02 0,02
41.94 33.96

(this space has been intentionally feft blank)
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VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

22 Other Expenses i As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(INR Crores) (INR Crores)
{a) Consumption of stores and spare parts 6.50 7.68
(b) Repairs and maintenance 6.32 1.53
(c) Power and fuel 11.70 11.46
(d) Material handling expenses 0.27 16.81
(e) Demmurace charges 0.72 0.48
{f) Port operation and maintenance expenses 28.41 20.05
(a) License fees for land 6.42 8.60
() Legal and wrofessional %79 291
(i) Payment to auditors 0.10 0.10
(i) Security expenses 1.79 1.7¢
(kY Insurance 1.41 1.79
(I} Travelling and conveyance 0.22 0.26
(m) Rates and taxes - -
(n} Directors sitting fees 0.19 0.29
(o) Provision for bad and doubtful debts = 0.69
{p) SEIS written off - &
(a) Miscellaneous expenses 3.41 3.35
(r) Loss on sale of fixed asset 0.00 0.62
70.25 78.32
Note:

(a)} Pavment to auditors

As Auditors

- Audit fee 0.07 0.05
- Tax Audit fee

- Limited review - 0.03

In other capacitv

- Taxation matters

- Company law matters

- Other services (Certification services) 0.03 0.01

- Reimbursement of expenses = -
0.10 0.09

(b} The Company was not required to spend any amounts on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities. The total actual expenditure on CSR activilies is also nil.

(this space has been intentionally left biank}




VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

23

24

Capital Management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital is to safeguard continuity, maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support
its business and provide adequate return to shareholders through continuing growth. The Company’s overall strategy remains unchanged from previous

year.

The Company sets the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business and long-term operating plans.

Ihe funding requirements are met through a mixture of equity, internal fund generation, convertible and non convertible debt securities, and other short
term and Long term borrowings. The company's policy is to use current and non current borrowings to meet anticipated funding requirement.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the net debt to equity ratio. The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

Net debt are long term and short term debts as reduced by cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances and current investments. Equity compriscs

all components including other comprehensive income.

The following table summarizes the capital structure of the Company:

Lona-term borrowinas (I1CL)
Short-term borrowings (ICL)

Cash and cash eauivalents (Note 10)
Current investments (Note 8)

Net debt (a)

Total Equity (b)

Net debt to eaquity ratio (c = a/b)

Earnings per share (EPS):

Basic earnings/(loss) per share (BEPS)

a. Net Profit/ (loss) after tax attributable to equity shareholders for BEPS
b. Number of equity shares for BEPS
C: Basic earnina/(loss) per share

Diluted earninas/ (loss) per share (DEPS)
a Diluted earning/(loss) per share (Refer Notes below)

Notes:

1 Net profit/ (loss) after tax attributable to equity shareholders for BEPS
Add: Interest on compulsory convertible debentures
Net profit/ (loss) after tax attributable to equity shareholders for DEPS

)

Number of equity shares for BEPS
Add: Effect of compulsory convertible debentures
Number of equity shares for DEPS

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(INR Crores) (INR Crores)
68.50 68.50
285.27 322.27
363.77 390.77
(40.12) (10.47)
(9.07) {372.33)
Units As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 "
INR Crores (29.59) (30.30})
No. of shares 4,71,08,000 4,71,08,000
Rupees (6.28) (6.43)
Rupees (6.28) (6.43)
INR Crores (29.59) (30.30)
INR Crores — i -
INR Crores (29.59) (30.30)
No. of shares 4,71,08,000 4,71,08,000
No. of shares = =
No. of shares 4,71,08,000 4,71,08,000
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25 Contingent liabilities, Commitments and others:

iii

Contingent liability:

The Company has received an order from the commissioner of Central Excise
Customs & Service tax dated March 20,2017 for payment of service tax liability
on account of incorrect availment of service tax credit on impugned capital
goods and taxability of Berth hire charges in the hands of the Company during
year 2013-14,

Management considers these demands as not tenable against the company and
therefore no provision for tax contingencies has been considered necessary.

The company has received a Show Cause Notice (SCN) from Commercial Tax
Officer (CTO), Gajuwaka on November 02, 2017 asking for explanation for TDS
deducted on rates different from those prescribed in the notification dated
September 14, 2011 on Works Contract payment made between period
November 14, 2011 to March 31,2015. The company had deducted the TDS at
different rates ranging from 2.80% to 3.37% as against the statutory rate of
3.50%, thus resulting in lower deduction of TDS of Rs. 0.54 Crores. As assessed
by CTO the liability is reduced from Rs.0.54 Crores to Rs.0.40 Crores as per the
revised demand notice by CTO dated 25th Nov 2020. Management has filed
appeal with tribunal against the CTO demand notice and basis assessment of the
internal legal counsel believes that probability of the liability devolving on the
Company is low and accordingly no provision has been made in the financial
statement in this regard. This disclosed amount includes Penalty amount of
communication received in 2020-21.

The Company has received an order from the Assistant commissioner of Central
dated August 30,2022 for payment of service tax liability on account of

nmqular avallment of transitional credit under sec 140(5) of CGST act 2017

Management considers these demands as not tenable against the company and

therefore no provision for tax contingencies has been considered necessary.

As at
March 31, 2025

(INR Crores)

As at
March 31, 2024

(INR Crores)

5.00

0.49

0.17
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Other Commitments :

iii} Export Obligation :

iv)

26

The company had export obligation of USD 51.20 Million in financial year 2012-2013 on account of concessional rates of
import duties paid on capital goods under the Export Promotion Capital Goods scheme enacted by the Government of India
which is to be fulfilled over a period of 6 - 8 years from the date of purchase. During FY 2021-22, the Company has fulfilled
export obligations and thus the Company has no pending export obligations as at March 31, 2025. The Company has given
bonds of Rs. 38.03 Crores (March 31, 2023: Rs. 38.03 Crores) to custom authorities against these export obligations.During
the current financial year, DGFT has granted the redemption of these export obligations.

Also, the company had export obligation of USD 0.38 Million in financial year 2023-2024 on account of concessional rates of
import duties paid on capital goods under the Export Promotion Capital Goods scheme enacted by the Government of India
which is to be fulfilled over a period of 6 years from the date of purchase. The company has given bonds of Rs.0.57 Crores
(March 31, 2024: Rs.0.57 Crores) to custom authorities against these export obligations. The company has fulfilled the export
obligation and will file for the redemption of this license in FY 2025-26.

Capital Commitment :
The Company has Capital commitment amounting to Rs.9.62 Crores (March 31,2024 Rs. 8.00 Crores) which are yet to be
executed and hence not provided for.

Share based compensation plans

The Company offered equity based and cash based option plans to its employees, officers and directors through the
Company's stock option plan introduced in 2016, Cairn India's stock option plan now administered by the Company pursuant
lo merger with the Company and Vedanta Resources Limited (earlier known as Vedanta Resources Plc) plans [Vedanta
Resources Long-Term Incentive Plan ("LTIP"), Employee Share Ownership Plan ("ESOP"), Performance Share Plan ("PSP")
and Deferred Share Bonus Plan ("DSBP")] collectively referred as "VRL ESOP' scheme.

Currently, the Company introduced an Employee Stock Option Scheme 2016 (“ESQS”), which was approved by the Vedanta
Limited shareholders to provide equity settled incentive to all employees of the Company including subsidiary companies. The
ESOS scheme includes tenure based, business performance based, sustained individual performance based and market
performance based stock options. The maximum value of options that can be awarded to members of the wider management
group is calculated by reference to the grade average cost-to-company ("CTC") and individual grade of the employee. The
performance conditions attached to the option is measured by comparing Company’s performance in terms of Total
Shareholder Return ("TSR") over the performance period with the performance of two group of comparator companies (i.e.
indian and global comparator companies) defined in the scheme. The extent to which an option vests will depend on the
Company's TSR rank against a group or groups of peer companies at the end of the performance period and as moderated by
the Remuneration Committee.

Options granted during the period ended March 31, 2025 includes business performance based, sustained individual
performance based and market performance based stock options. Business performances will be measured using Volume,
Cost, Net Sales Realisation, EBITDA or a combination of these for the respective business/ SBU entities.

Amount recovered by the Parent and recognized by the company in the statement of profit and loss account for the period

ended March 31, 2025 was Rs 0.47 Crores (Year ended March 31, 2024 was Rs 0.51 Crores). The Company considers these
amounts as not material and accordingly has not provided further disclosures.

(this space has been intentionally left blank)
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27 Emplevee benefits
{i) Definad contribution plans

The Company makes Provident Fund contributions te defined contribution plans for gualifying employees. Under the scheme, the Company
is required to contribute a specified percentage of Lhe payroll costs Lo fund the benefits, The Company hos racognised Rs. 0.29 Crores
(Previous year Rs. 0.25 Crores) for Provident Fund contributions in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

The Company has recegnised Rs. D.14 Crores (Previous year Rs.0.13 Crores) for Superannuation Fund contributions in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Central provident fund

In accordance with Lhe The Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, employees are entitled to receive benefits
under the Provident Fund Scheme. Both the employee and the employer make monthly contributions to the plan at & predetermined rate
{12% for fiscal year 2025 and 2024} of an employee’s basic salary. All employecs have an option to make additional voluntary
contributions. These contributions are made to the fund administered and managed by the Government of India (GOIY. The Company has
no further obligations under the fund managed by the GOI beyond its monthly contributions which are charged to the statement of profit
and loss In the period they are incurred.

Superannuation

Superannuation, another pension scheme applicable in India, is applicable only to senior executives. The Company holds a poliey with Life
Insurance Corporaticn of Indig (“LIC"), to which the Company contributes a fixed amount relating to superannuation and the pension
annuity is met by LIC as required, taking into consideration the conlributions made. The Company has no further obligations under the
scheme beyond its monthly contributions which are charged to the statement of profit and loss in Lhe peried they are incurred.

(ii) efined benefit plans
Gratuity plan

In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act of 1872, the Company contributes to a defined benefit plan {the “Gratuity Plan”) for
employees whe have compleled 5 years of service. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment Lo vested employees al retirement,
disability or tormination of employment being an amount based on the respective employee’s last drawn salary and the number of years of
employment with the Company The gratuity plan is 2 funded plan and the company makes contribution te recognized funds in India.

Based on actuarial vaiuations conducted as at year end, a provision is recognised n full for the benefit obligation over and above the funds
held in the Gratuty Plan, '

Principal actuarial assumptions
Principdl octuarial assomphions used to delermine the present value of the defimed benefit obligation are as follows:

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year cnded
March 31, 2035

ef M Canl 1 COMDensanon ovel of coverced employogs

. i o plan asset? 0%
Rt 1 uac 58 veais
Ta Sorvice Moriolity IALM 12082143

wal rples far-

Db pEars

* The expected rate of interest is considered based an histoncal dala.

- Ampount of oblioaticn recognised in the balance sheet consists of:

Presenl vatuae of defined benefit obligations
Fair value of plan asscts
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Year ended
March 31, 2025
{INR Crores)

Year ented
March 31, 2024
(INR Crores}
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27 Emplovee benefits

Cont..
- Amounts recognised in Statement of Profit and loss in respect of defined benefit plan are as follows:
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(INR Crores) (INR Crores)
Current service cost 0.08 0.06
Interest expenses on plan liabilities 0.07 0.07
Exnected return on plan assets 0.05 0.04
0.02 0.02

- Amaunts recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income in respect of defined benefit plan are as follows;

Remeasurement of net defined benefit obligation M:fcahr:;.‘,d:gzs M:;al:::'l‘,d:gz4
{INR Crores) (INR Crores)
Actuarial loss/(gain) arising from changes in financial assumption 0.03 0.01
Actuarial loss arising from changes in experience adjustment 0.04 (0.06)
Actuarial gain arising from changes in demogrophic adjustment (0.00) =
Components of defined benefit costs recoanized in other comprehensive income 0.06 (0.05)
- The movement in present value of the defined benefit obligation is as follows: - S I o
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(INR Crores) (INR Crores)
Balance at start of the vear 0.94 0.89
Current service cost 0.08 0.06
Interest cost 0.07 0.07
Benefits paid (0.04) (0.02)
Actuarial Gain on arising from Change in Demoaraphic Assumption (0.00) =
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in financial assumption 0.03 0.01
Actuanal loss arising from changes in experience adjustment 0.04 (0.06)
Balance al end of vear 1.11 0.94
- Movement in the fair value of plan assets is as follows:
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
{INR Crores) (INR Crores)
Balance at start of the vear 0.63 0.61
Contribution received 0.10 i
Interest income ¢.05 0.04
Changes 0.00
Benefits paid S—— {0.04) . (0.02)
Balance at the end of vear . e 0.74 0.63
% allocation of plan assets
Assets by category Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Life insurance corporation of india 100% 100%

In absence of detailed information regarding plan assets which is funded with Life Insurance Corporation of India, the composition of cach

major category of plan assets and the percentage or amount for each major category to the fair value of total plan assets has not been
disclosed.

The actuarial return on plan assets was Rs. 0.05 Crores for the year ended March 31,2025 and Rs.0.04 Crores for year ended March
31,2024.

Weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation 4.49 3.81

The company expects to contribute Rs. 0.12 Crores to the funded defined benefit plan in fiscal year 2025 (PY of Rs.0.08 Crores).

Sensitivity analysis
Below is the sensitivity analysis determined for significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of defined benefit obligations and

based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period while holding all other
assumptions constant.

@
D
s |

A
LN
{e

Hvderabad

N'014821C/
N500088

eujedelesIA




VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED
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27 Emplovee benefits

Cent.. Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025 HMarch 31, 2024 (INR
(INR Croras) Crores)

Digscount rate

PVO at the end of period {Discount rate - 0,.5% ) 1.13 0.96

PVO at the end of period Discount rate 1.11 0.94

PVO at the end of peried {Discount rate 4+ 0.5% ) 1.09 0.93

Expected rate of increase in compensation level of covered emplovees

PVQ at the end of pered (Salary Increase - 6.5% ) 1.09 0.93

PYQ 2t the end of period Salary increase 1.11 0,94

PVQ at the end of period (Salary Increase  + 0.5% ) 1.12 0.95

The above sensitivity anelysis may not be representative of the actual benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions
would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

In preseating the abeve sensitivity analysis, the prosent value of defined bencfit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit
credil method at the end of reporting period, which is Lhe same as that applied in calcufating the dofined obligation liability recegnized in
the balance sheet.

Risk analysis
Cornpany is exposed to a number of risks in the defined beaefit plans. Most significant risks pertaining to defined benefits plans and
management astimation of the impact of these risks are as follows:

Investment risk
Defined benefit plans are funded with Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC). Company does not have any fiberty to manage the fund
provided to LIC.

The present value of the defined benefit plan hability is calculated using @ discount rate determined by reference to Government of India
bonds . If the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will creete a plan deficit.

Interest risk
A decrease in the interest rote on plan assets will ingrease the pian liability.
tonaovity risk/ Life expectancy

The prosent value of the defined benefit plan habitity 15 calcelated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan partiopants
both gfuring and at the end of the employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan liability.

Satare orowth rigk
The preseat value of the defined benefit plan liabibly s calculaied by reference tn e future salares of plan particpants. AnRcreasa n tha
salary of the plan participants wilf increase the plan liability.

Haturity Profile of Defined Benahit Obligstion

I e R Crores !
|¥ear March 31, 20238

BT
T to ? Year

Z iy

e E ey
5 to 6 Year
5 Year onwards 0.30
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28 Related partv transactions
(a) List of related parties and relationships

(i) Ultimate holding company

Vedanta Incorporated (Formerly Known as Volcan Investments Limited)
(ii) Holding company:

Vedanta Limited

(iii) Fellow subsidiaries
- Bharat Aluminium Company Limited
- Talwandi Sabo Private Limited
- Sesa Mining Corporation Limited (formerly known as "Maritime Ventures Private Limited")
- Hindustan Zinc Limited
- ESL Steel Limited (Formerly known as Electrosteel Steels Limited)
- Malco Energy limited
- FACOR
- Sterlite Digital Limited
- Cairn India Limited

{iv) List of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

= Mr. Prasun Kumar Mukherjee : Non-Executive Independent Director

- Mr. Anoop Kumar Sharma : Non-Executive Independent Director (w.e.f Nov 01, 2023)
- Mr. Anup Agarwal : Non-Executive Director

- Mr, Chikkala Sateesh Kumar : Whole-time Director & Chief Executive Officer-KMP

- Mr. Gopal Mandelia : Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f Nov 01, 2023)-KMP

- Ms, Saif Khan : Company Secretary (w.e.f Sep 28, 2024)-KMP

(b) Details of related party transactions (Excluding taxes, applicable if any) and balances outstanding as at year end are as stated

below.
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
{INR Crores) (INR Crores)
Transaction ring ti ear

(i1 Income from port aperations *
- Vedanta Limited - =
- Bharat Aluminium Companv Limited - -
- Sesa Minina Corporation Limited 4.20 7.56
- ESL Steel Limited (Formerly known as Electrosteel Steels Limited) = =

iy Employee benefit expenses charged by*

- Vedanta Limited (Refer Note 26) 0.47 0.51
(iii) Employee benefit & Admin expenses charged to *
Vedanta Limited U1z 0.01

Sesa Minina Corporation Limited 6.63 8.52
ESL Steel Limited (Formerly known as Electrosteel Steels Limited) - -

- Hindustan Zinc Limited , -

- Cairn India Limited -
Malco Fnergy limited 0.00

1t Alumir Carn Ve

at Aluminium Company Limited

FACOR 202

(iv) Finance cost charged by Vedanta Limited *

- Interest on borrowinas 7.53 13.06

- Other borrowing costs 0.12 0.35
(v} Finance cost charged by Sesa Mining Corporation Limited * 24.78 13.11
{vi) Reimbursement of expenses net*

- Vedanta Limited 3.16 2.72

- Bharat Aluminium Companv Limited < 0.04

- Hindustan Zinc Limited 0.01 0.01

- Cairn India Limited - 0.00

- FACOR - 0.02

- ESL Steel Limited 0.01

- Sterlite Diaital Limited 0.44

- Malco Enerav limited

(vii) Purchase of Assets & Purchases & other services
- Vedanta Limited - =
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23 Related partv transactions

{viii) Short term borrowing taken from

- Vedanta Limited (126,15} 136.25

~ Sesa Mintng Corporation Limited {Formerly known as Mantime Ventures Private Limited) 99.15 186.02
{ix} Leng term borrowing taken from

- Vedanta Limited - 18.50

- Sesa Mining Corporation Limited (Formerly known as Maritime Venlures Private Limited) - 50.00
fx} Kev Manaaerment Personnel *

- Sitting fees paid 0.19 0.29

- Remuneration of Key Managerial Porsonnil {rafer nole below) 2.22 1.89

Nate: Remuneration of Kev Manaaarial Personnel Year ended Year ended

Mar 31, 2025

Mar 31, 2024

{INR Crares} (ENR Crores)
Short-term emgplayce benelits 1.82
Post employment benefits c.o8 0.07
Total 2.22 i.89
* Details of related party transactions are reported by excluding taxes, if any
Dutstandinag balances at vear end
As at As at
Mar 31, 2025 Mar 31, 2024
{INR Croras) (INR Crores)
{i} tong term barrowing
- Vedanta Uimited 18.5¢ 18,50
- Sess Mining Corporation Limited (Formerly known as Maritime Ventures Private Limited) 50.00 50.00
{1 Short term borrowina
- Vedanta Limited 13.18 136.25
- Sesd Mining Corporation Limited (Fermerlv known as Maritime Ventures Private Limited) 28217 186.02
tnit Carporate Guaranlee issued on Campanv's hehalf by
- Vadanta Limited 51.24 54.24
vt frade Pavablos
Yedanla Limded 11.82 9.36
- Sesa Mimng Corporation Limited (Formarly known as Maritime Ventures Private Limited)
- Cairn India -
- Ferro Allevs Corporation Limited - .
- Tlectro Stect Limited 0.05 0.04
- Hindustan Zing Lid 0.01 -
{vi Mhoer !mancul fiabilties
dedanta Y] [N
Findus - -
- Sosa M 37.45 15.3¢
i
- it alpimarsum Lompany beaded
b B ie ot I 4 gy ke toctrastont Sleals Limitod)
- talco Eneray brnted - 0.80
- Sesa Mining Corooration timited 331 2.03
ferms ang conditians of ransactions with relatod partiss
H GEUL d GEEnoary Course OF Duseiss, Thorg have DOEA ND Qusianices pIovided o recovad (68 any

rcEa d party recaivables or payables, For Lhe year ended March 31 2025, the company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating
to amounts owed by refated parties. This assessmaent is undertaken cach fnancial year through cxamining the financial position of the related
patly oo the markct i which the related party eperates.
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29 Tax expense/(Benefit)

The major components of income tax expense/(Benefit) for the year ended March 31, 2025 are indicated below:

Year ended Year ended
Mar 31, 2025 Mar 31, 2024
(INR Crores) (INR Crores)
Current Tax . ¥
Deferred tax liability arising on temporary differences 2.59 2.84
2.59 2.84

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to accounting profits before tax at the statutory income tax rate to recognised income tax expense for the
year indicated are as follows:

Year ended Year ended

Mar 31, 2025 Mar 31, 2024

(INR Crores) (INR Crores)
Net (Loss) before tax (27.01) (27.45)
Statutory tax rate 25.17% 25.17%
Tax at statutory income tax rate (6.80) (6.91)
DTA noet recognized on CY losses 5.10 6.12
Tax Assets charged to P&L # 2.78
Tax Charge for earlier years - 0.85
Deferred tax on Fair valuation of Mutual Fund under income tax 0.02 (0.01)
Deferred tax on Employee benifits under income tax on provisions (0.03) 0.01
Others 4,29 e
Tax charge /(Credit) for the year 2.59 _ 2.84

Sectoral Benefit - Port Operations

The company has opted for new tax regime u/s 115BAA of the income tax act in the previous financial year. Accordingly, The effective tax rate applicable is
25.168% under new tax regime, MAT provisions are not applicable.

Unused tax losses for which no deferred tax asset has been recognized amounts to Rs. 62,93 Crores as at 31 March 2025.

As at 31 March 2025 (INR Crores)

Within Greater than Braatar Han

Unused tax losses/unused tax credit one one year, less - No expiry date Total
= five years
year than five years
inutilised business losses o 1.87 1.87
Unabsorbed depreciation 61.05 61.05
Total e o oo - - 1.87 61.05 62.93

No deferred tax assets has been recognised on these unused tax losses as there is no evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available in future against
which these can be utilized.
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30 Income tax

Deferred tax liahilities/ (assets)

The deferred tax Hability represents accelerated tax relief for the depreciation of property plant and equipment and the amortisation of intangible
assets and gain on the fair valuation of mutual fund. Significant companents of liability recognized in the balance sheet are as follows:

As at March 31, 2025

{INR Crores)

Significant components of deferred tax
liabilities / (assets}

Opening
April 01, 2024

Charged /
{credited) to
Statement of profit

Charged/
{credited) to OCIX

Total as at
March 31, 2025

Property, plant and equipment and
intangible assels

Losses/Unabascrbed Depriciation
available for offsetting against future
taxable inceme ’
Fair valuation on mutual fund

Cmployee benefit

tease liability and ROU Assct

As ot Mar 31, 2024

69.41 (1.57) - 67.84

(119.38) 4.17 - (115.18)

{0.02) 0.02 - 0.01

(0.12) (0.03) - (0.1%)

- (0.01) (0.01}

(hher Temporary Differcnces - Pravisions - -

(50.08) 2.59 - {47.453)

3 ‘z%té?ii’i;’;r%;i_"é_ss'"i';g}é}%'ﬂ.’i'!’ib of duferred lax ww@pe‘:rzirzg Charged Lharged/ Yotat ms 4t

liabilities /7 {asseis)

April 01, 2023

{eredited) to
Statement of profit

{credited) to OCI

Margh 331, 2024

Property, plant and equipment and
i ot

i g rapriciation
avatlabie for offsetting agamst fulure
torwahle incamoe

tair valeation on muluat fund

Lrmploves benefit

Cther Temporary Differences - Provisions
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70.10 {0.68) - &9 1
(177833 152
{0.01) {0.01) - (0.02)
{0.12} 0.01 - (0.12)
(52.92) 2.84 y (50.081
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31 Financial Instruments

(a) Financial risk management objective and policies

(b

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and provides additional information on the balance sheet. Details of significant
accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of
financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note 2 and 3.

Financial assets and liabilities:

The accounting classification of each categary of financial instruments, and their carrying amounts, are set out below:

As at March 31, 2025

(INR Crores)

Financial assets FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised cost Total carrying value Total fair value
Cash and cash eauivalents - - 5.45 5.45 5.45
Other Bank Balances ] - 1.06 1.06 1.06
Current investments 2.88 - - 2.88 2.88
Trade receivables - ] 19.23 19.23 19.23
Security deposits - - 3.20 3.20 3.20
Other receivables & - . = <
Other current financial asset - - 0.48 0.48 0.48
2.88 - 29.43 32.31 32.31
Financial liabilities FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised cost Total carrying value Total fair value
7H:Jrruwinﬂs - - 363.77 363.77 363.77
Irade pavables e " 81.87 81.87 81.87
Lease Liabilities 1.14 114 1.14
Other non current financial liabilities E - - E =
Other current financial liabilities - - 66.31 66.31 66.31
- - 513.08 513.08 513.08
As at March 31, 2024 (INR Crores)
Financial assets FVTPL FVTOCI Amaortised cost Total carrying value Total fair value
“Cash and cash equivalents E = 6.67 6.67
Other Bank Balances E - 0.52 0.52 .
Current investments - - - - -
Trade reccivables E - 17.41 17.41 1/.41
Security deposits - - 3.20 3.20 3.20
Other receivables = - - = =
Other current financial asset - - 5 3 1.11 s _1.11
- 28.91 28.91 28.91
Financial liabilities FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised cost Total carrying value Total fair value
iorrowings = S T e - 390,77 T 390.77 . 39077
Trade pavables - - 74.58 74.58 74.58
Other non current financial liabilities - = = = =
Other current financial liabilities - - 36.26 36.26 36.26
= = 501.61 501.61 501.61

Fair value hierarch

Ihe company uses the following hierarchy for determinina and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique-

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly

(i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices)
Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on ohservable market data (unobservable inputs)

Ihe below table summarises the categories of financial assets and liabilities as at March 31,2025 and March 31,2024

As at March 31, 2025

Financial Assets

- Currant investments
tinancial Liabilities

- Borrowinas

As at _March 31, 2024

Financial Assets

- Current investments
Financial Liabilities

- Borrowinas

(INR Crores)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
2.88 L o
- 363.77 -
{INR Crores)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(0.00) - -
) 390.77 =

(this space has been intentionally left blank)




VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

31 Financizl Instruments {Cont.)

()

1

The fair value of the fnancial assets and febilities are at the amount that would be received to sell an asset and paid to transfer a hability in an orderly transaction betwoeen
market participanis at the measurement date. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values.

Short-term marketable securities not traded in active markets are determined by reference to quotes from the financial institutions; for examgie: Net asset value {NAVY [or
investments in mutusl funds declared by mutual fund house, (a Level 1 technigue)

Borrowings has been classified as evel 2 both during the year and previous year. There were no transfers between level 1, level 2 and level 3 during the year.

The Management assessed fatr value of cash & cash equivaionts, trade receivables, security deposits, loans, trade payables and other curreat financial assets and liahilitics
as their book values because of their short term maturities, A26

Risk management framework

The company’s businesses are subject to several risks and uncertalnties including financial risks. The Company’s documented risk managemant polices act as an cffective
tool i mitigating the various finencial risks to which the business is exposed to in the course of their daily operations. The risk management policies cover areas such as
liquidity risk, interest rate risk, counterparty and concentration of credit risk and capital management. Risks are identified through a formal risk managemaent programme
with active invelvement of senior managemant parsonnel and business managers.Each significant risk has a designalted *owner” within the company at an appropriale senior
tevel. The potential financial impact of the risk and its likelihood of a negative outcome are regularly updated,

The risk managemnent process is coerdinated by the Management Assurance function and is regularly reviewed by Lhe Company's Audit Committee, The averall internal
contral environment and risk management programme including financial risk management is reviewed by the Audit Committee on hehalf of the Board.

the risk management framework aims to:

- improve financial risk awarencss and risk transparency

ideatify, control and monitor key risks

identify risk accurmulations

provide management with reliable information an the Company's risk situation
- improve financial returns

Treasury management

the Company’s freasury funclion provides services to the business, co-ordinales access to domestic angd internabional financial markets, monitors and TAnaGes s Ll
asks relating i the operations of the Company through interaal risk reports which analyses exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These rnsks include market nick
{ncluding currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and cashflow risk.

Heasury management focuses on capital protection, liquidity maintenance and yield maximization. The Company's treasury policies are within the framewark of ihe owergll
Holding Company's treasury policies and adherence to these policies is strictly monitored at the Exetutive Commitiee meetings. Long-term fund raising incluting stratoge
lrzasury inititives are handled with the help of central treasury team. A monthly reporting system exists to inform sentor management of investments ang debl. The
company has a strong system of internal cootrol which gnables effective monitoring of adherence to company’s pohoies. The internal contral measures are affeckivels
supplemented by regalar internal audits.

Financial risk

Tenuiigie = SASETES ik 3 Hi cobt sk, Ve e

Eeigainhity risk

based on the remaining poring from the dale of balancs shae! to the contractual maturity date ig givan in thin tanie helaw, The Bauees rofl thr

Liodd e of BEr F i

(INR Crores)
Ay at March 31, 2025

Payment Due by Year <1 year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years > 5 Years Total
Borrowings = 29527 63.50 3G3./7
iroge payablos and cther fmancat 168 50 : 0.87 ) 149
nablies 77

Total 443.75 - 1 65,50 51308

{IME Crores}
As at Mareh 31, 2024

<iwear 1-3 Years 35 Years o mmyears T
Borrowings * 372.27 - - 6850 3an, 7
Trodi pay.::eblcs ahd other financdal 110.84 . . i 11654
lighilites +=
Gccivalives finandial labilitics
Yotal " 433.11 - z B 68,50 " Bp1.51

*tactudes MNon-current borrowings, current borrawings, curronl maturities of non-current borrowings and commilted interest paymants [(Reler point 3 to Mote 1343

Ttiackedes carrent financial Fabiliiies, excludes corrent maturitios of non-curent borrowings and committed inderest payments on Barvowings
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31 Financial Instruments (Cont,)

0]

The Company had access to following funding facilities :
As at March 31, 2025

Total Facility

{INR Crores)

Drawn Undrawn
less than one year = = %
more than two year 16.00 15.91 0.09
Total 16.00 15.91 0.09
As at March 31, 2024
(INR Crores)
Total Facility Drawn Undrawn
Non_ fund based lim
less than one year - = o
mere than two year 16.00 15.91 0.09
Total 16.00 15.91 0.09

Collateral security

Details of securities for the borrowing facilities availed by the Company are as below:

Foreign_exchange risk

toreign exchange risk comprises of the risk that may arise to the Company because of fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates. Fluctuations in foreign currency
exchange rates may have an impact on the statements of profit or loss and statement of change in equity where any transaction references more than one currency or
where assets/liabilities are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the Company. The Company does not have any foreign currency expsourc as on

March 31, 2025.

The Company’s exposure to foreign currency arises where the Company holds monetary assets and liabilities denominated in a currency different to the functional currency,
with US dellar being the non-functional currency. The value of a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign currency exchange

rate, liquidity and other market changes.

The company has no foreign currency exposure as on March 31, 2025 & March 31, 2024.
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VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED
HOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

31 Financial Instruments (Cont.)
{11} interest rate risk

The company is exposed to interest rate risk on fong-term floating rate instruments and on refinancing of fixed rate debt borrowing instrurments outstanding as on the year
end. The company’s pelicy is to maintain a balance of fixed and floating interest rate borrowings and the proportion of fixad and fleating rate debt is determinad by current
market interest rates. The berrowings of the Company are principally denominated in Indian Rupees. Indian Rupee debt comprising of non convertible debenturas term loan
and compulsory convertible debentures Is principally at fixed interast rates. These exposures are reviewed by sppropriate levels of management on a monthly basis. The
Company invests cash and liquid investments in debt mutual funds, seme of which generate a tax-free return, to achieve the company's goal of maintaining liquidity,
carrying manageable risk and achieving satisfactory returns.

Foating rate financist asscls are largely interest bearing security deposits held by the Company. The returns from these financial assets are finked to bank rate notificd by
Reserve Bank of India as agjusted annually. Additicnally, the investments portfolio is independently reviewed by CRISIL Limited, and our investment pertfolic has been rated
as "Very Good” meaning highest safety.

The exposure of the Company's financial assets & financial liabilities as at March 31, 2025 to interest rate risk is as follows:

‘(INR Crores)

Floating Rate Fixed Rate Non Interest Total
Financial Assets - 2.93 29.38 32.31
Financial Liabilities 363.77 149.32 513.08
Range of intercst rate applicable 2.00% - 2.50% 8.00% - 9.70% A

The exposure of the Company’s financial asscts & financial Habilitics as at March 31, 2024 to intorest rate risk is as follows:

(INR Crores}

Floating Rate fixed Rate MNaon Interest Total
Bearing
Financial Assets (0.00) 2.39 26.51 28.91
Financial Liabilities 390.77 110.84 501.61
e table belew flustrates the impact of a 6.5% to 2.0% increase ininterest rates on interest on financial assels/ hiabilities fnel) assurming Lhat the changes acom at b

reporting date and has been calculated based on risk exposure autstanding as of date. The year ond balances are nol nocessaridy ropresentative of the aversge debs
nutstanding during Fthe year. This analysis also assumes that all other variables, in particular fercign currency rates, remain constant.

{INR Crores) {IMR Crores)
Year Ended  March ¥ear Ended
Increzso in interest rotes 31, 2025 fMarch 31, 2024

11.4% 1o 2% reduction in intarest rate would have an equal and opposite effect on the company’s financial statcments.

{this space has boen intentionally Ioft biank}
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31

Financial Instruments (Cont.)

(iil) Counterparty and concentration of credit risk

33

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual ebligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. The Company has adopted & policy of only
dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. The company
is exposed Lo credit risk for receivables, cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments and loans and advances,

The history of trade receivables shows a negligible provision for bad and doubtful debts therefore the company does not expect any material risk on account of non
performance by any of the company's counter parties.

for short-term investments, counterparty limits are in place to limit the amount of credit exposure to any one counterparty. Defined limits are in place for exposure to
individual counterparties in case of mutual funds schemes.

The carrying value of the financial assets and Current investments other than cash represents the maximum credit exposure. The company’s maximum exposurc to credit
risk as at March 31, 2025 is Rs.20.94 Crores (March 31, 2024 Rs.21.56 Crores).

None of the company’s cash equivalents are past due or impaired. Regarding trade and other receivables and other non-current assets, there were no indicotions as at
March 31, 2025, that defaults in payment obligations will occur, other than those for which provision has already been taken in the financial statements.

Of the year end trade receivables and other financial assets, the following balance were past due but not impaired as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 :

“Particulars

(INR Crores)

(INR Crores)

As at As at
N March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Neither impaired nor past due 335 3.35
Due less than one month 7.26 7.90
Due between 1 to 3 Months 7.4 7.4
Due between 3 to 12 Months 127 1.74
Due Greater than 12 Months 0.63 0.63
Total 20.94 21.56

Receivables are deemed to be past due or impaired with reference to the Company’s normal terms and conditions of business. These terms and conditions are determined
on a case lo case basis with reference to the customer’s credit quality and prevailing market conditions. Receivables that are classified as ‘past due’ in the above tables are
those that have not been settled within the terms and conditions that have been agreed with that customer.The company based on past expericnce does not expect any
malerial loss on its receivbles and hence no provision on account of ECL.

redit quality of the Company's customers is menitored on an ongoing basis and assessed for impairment where indicators of such impairment exist. The Company uscs
sunplified approach for impairment of financial assets. Il credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month expected credit loss is used to provide for impairment loss.
However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime expected credit loss is used. The solvency of the debtor and their ability to repay the receivable is considered in
asscssing receivables for impairment. Where receivables have been impaired, the Company actively seeks to recover the amounts in question and enforce compliance with
credit terms

Audit Trail

The Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit leg) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software except that audit trail feature was enabled in the SAP application for direct changes to data in
certain database tables for part of the year. Further no instance of audit trail feature being tampered with was noted in respect of the software. Additionally, the Company
has preserved audit trail in full compliance with the requirements of section 128(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of the financial year ended March 31, 2024 to the
extent it was enabled and recorded during the year ended March 31, 2024.

(this space has been intentionaily left blank)
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

32 Service Concession arrangement

The Company has been engaged in coal berth mechanization and upgradation at Visakhapatnam port. The project is to be carried out on a design,
build, finance, operate, transfer basis and the concession agreement between Visakhapatnam Port Trust ('VPT') and the Company was signed in June
2010. In October 2010, the Company was awarded with the concession after fulfilling conditions stipulated as a precedent to the concession
agreement. Visakhapatnam port trust has provided, in lieu of license fee an exclusive license to the Company for designing, engineering, financing,
constructing, equipping, operating, maintaining, and replacing the project/project facilities and services. The concession period is 30 years from the
date of the award, The upgraded capacity is 10.18 mmtpa and the Visakhapatnam port trust would be entitled to receive 38.10% share of the gross
revenue as royalty. The Company is entitled to recover a tariff from the user(s) of the project facilities and services as per its Tariff Authority for Major
Ports(TAMP) notification. The tariff rates are linked to the Wholesale Price Index (WPI) and would accordingly be adjusted as specified in the
concession agreement every year. The ownership of all infrastructure assets, buildings, structures, berths, wharfs, equipment and other immovable
and movable assets constructed, installed, located, created or provided by the Company at the project site and/or in the port's assets pursuant to
concession agreement would be with the Company until expiry of this concession agreement. The cost of any repair, replacement or restoration of the
project facilities and services shall be borne by the Company during the concession period. The Cempany has to transfer all its rights, titles and
interest in the project facilities and services free of cost to VPT at the end of the concession period. Intangible asset port concession rights represents
consideration for construction services. No Revenue from construction contract of service concession arrangments on exchanging construction services
for the port concession rights was recognised for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2025.

(this space has been intentionally left blank)




34 Financial ratios are as follows:

(vi)

(vii)

NOTES FORMING P

VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED

T OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

Ratio Formula As at As at Change ~ Reasons
31 Mar 2025 31 March 2024 : .
{(a) Current Ratio (in times) Current Assets/Current Liabilities Due to increase in other
0.24 0.28 -16% financial liability (i.e., Interest
accrued on loan)
(b) Debt-Equity Ratio (in times) Gross Debt/ Equity (9.07) (37.33) _76% Due to negative networth on
account of CY losses.
(c) DebF Service Coverage Ratio Earnings bef_ore inte_rest, depreciation, tax_ ar)d o, Due to decrease in Loan
(in times) exceptional items/ (interest expense + principal 0.10 0.08 34% 5
outstanding.
navments af lnna term Inane)
i io (Y)* i i
(d) Return on Equity Ratio (%)* Net Profit after tax before exceptional/Net Worth 74% 2899% 750, E:tfiugod\:crease in negative
(e) Inventory turnover ratio (in Revenue from operations less EBITDA/ Average B ~ 0% NA
times) Inventorv
(f) Tra'de _Rec'ewables turnover Revepue from operations/ Average Trade Due to decrease in Revenue
ratio (in times) Receivables 8.59 11.91 -28% from operations and increase
trade receivable.
(g) Trade payables turnover Total Purchases/Average Trade Payables - N 0% NA
ratio fin times)
(h) {\:;tpcsa)pltal turnover ratio (in Revenue from Operations / Working capital (0.38) (0.40) 5% No Major change
; ; n_— ; "
(i) Net profit ratio (%) !\Iet Profit after tax before e?(ceptlonal 2199 ~18% 2% No Major change
itemns/Revenue from onerations )
() R_etL{rn on Capital employed Earnings net of taxes/ Average Capital Employed (0.46) (0.33) 38% Due to negative profit after
fin times) tax.
Due to higher income earned
i) ‘Returnion investment Income from |nw_zstment measured at FVTPL/ 0.27 0.17 S6% fmm_FVTPL investments
Average current investment relative to a lower average
current investmenl base.
Note:

1. The Company has net current liabilities amounting to Rs. 411.47 Crores mainly on account of Inter corporate loan which is classified as current. The directors have
received an unconditional letter of support from Vedanta Limited,the parent company, who will provide financial support to the Company to enable it to meet its obligations
as and when they fall due and to carry on its current business for the next 18 months. Thus, the financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis.

Other Statutorv Information

The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.
The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off
I'he Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period,
The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
the Intermediary shall: (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the

Beneficiaries) or (b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

The Company have nol received any fund from any person(s) or entity(les), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether

understanding th

company (Ultimate

recorded in writing

or otherwise) that the Company shall: (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (Ultimate Bencficiaries) or (b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accaunts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

(this space has been intentionally left blank)
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36 The Company has only one business segment primarily the supply of cargo handling and storage services and operates in one geographical segment.
Accordingly, disclosures relating to operating segments under the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 108 on “Operating Segments” notified under
section 133 read with Rule 4A of the Companies Act, 2013, are not applicable to the Company for period ended March 31, 2025. Revenue from three
customers amounting to Rs. 79.37 Crores (March 31, 2024 Rs, 83.38 Crores revenue from three customers ) exceeded 10% of the total revenue of
company. All the company's revenue , trade receivable and non current asset are in India.

37

38

Previous year figures have been regrouped/ reclassified, where necessary, to confirm to this year's classification.

Events after the Balance Sheet Date:

The Company evaluates events and transactions that occur subsequent to the balance sheet date but prior to the approval of the financial statements to
determine the necessary for recognition and/or reporting of any of these events and transactions in the financial statements. As of April 23, 2025, there
were no subsequent events to be recognized or reported that are not already disclosed.
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